
 
 
Meeting attendees with disabilities that need special accommodations should contact the Cass County 
Highway Department at 701-298-2370 prior to the meeting to make arrangements. 
 

CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 Thursday, June 22, 2023 at 7:00 a.m.  
West Fargo Public Works, 810 12th Ave NW, West Fargo, ND 58078 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 
C. Determination of a Quorum 
D. Approve Meeting Minutes of May 25, 2023 
 
E. Public Hearing Items 

 
1. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of 

Link Subdivision located in Section 20, Township 139 North, Range 
52 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Everest Township, Cass 
County, North Dakota. Previously tabled. 
 

F. New Business 
 
 

G. Old Business 
 
 

H. Adjournment 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 25, 2023 1 
 

CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
May 25, 2023 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

A meeting of the Cass County Planning Commission was called to order on May 25, 2023 at 7:02 am in 
the West Fargo Public Works conference room. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

Planning Commissioners attending in person were Rocky Bertsch, Ken Lougheed, Dr. Tim Mahoney, Brad 
Olson, Keith Gohdes David Gust. Keith Monson, Hugh Veit and Commissioner Breitling were absent. 
 
Attending in person was Tom Soucy, Assistant Cass County Engineer. Katherine Naumann attended via 
Teams.   
 
Members of the public attending in person were Chad Lilleberg and Lloyd Nelson. 
 

C. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
It was determined that there was a quorum based on the roll call. 

 
D. MINUTES, APPROVED 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Gust moved and Mr. Olson seconded to approve the minutes of the April 27, 2023 
meeting as presented. 
Motion carried. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of Lilleberg Subdivision located 
in Section 13, Township 141 North, Range 49 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Harwood 
Township, Cass County, North Dakota. Previously tabled. 

 
Mr. Lougheed opened the public hearing. 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled Lilleberg Subdivision to plat a 
one (1) Lot subdivision of approximately 21 acres. According to the applicant, the subdivision is 
requested to plat the farmstead for a newly constructed house. 
 
The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The 
subdivision will use an existing 26th St SE road access, ditches for storm sewer conveyance, rural 
water, and on-site septic systems for wastewater treatment. 
 
Mr. Soucy reviewed the general information of the geotechnical evaluation with the group. He 
stated that it does meet the safety standards and the county is no longer concerned with any soil 
issues. Mr. Gohdes commended Mr. Lilleberg for doing everything the county requested. 
 
Upon hearing no additional public comments, the public hearing was closed. 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Gust moved, Mr. Gohdes seconded to accept the findings and recommendations of 
staff and recommend approval to the County Commission of the 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 25, 2023 2 
 

subdivision application as the proposal meets the goals and objectives of the Cass 
County Comprehensive Plan, the Cass County Highway Access Plan, the Flood Damage 
Prevention Ordinance, the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance and all other applicable 
regulations, with the following conditions: 

1.  A deed restriction be recorded that meets the requirements of Section 5.04(g) 
of the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance. 

On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 
 

2. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of Grand Farm Subdivision 
(Located in Everest Township, A Part of the NE 1/4 Section 8, Township 139 North, Range 52 
West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cass County North Dakota).  

 
Mr. Lougheed opened the public hearing. 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled Grand Farm Subdivision to plat a 
two (2) Lot subdivisions of approximately 52.7 and 85.91 acres. According to the applicant, the 
subdivision is requested to build north of the Wheatland Channel and building south of the 
Wheatland Channel to add an additional two buildings. 
 
The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The 
subdivision will use an existing 153rd Ave SE road access, ditches for storm sewer conveyance, 
rural water, and on-site septic systems for wastewater treatment. 
 
Mr. Nelson spoke about the buildings that will be constructed now which includes a presentation 
building, space for meetings and conferences, and space for operations. 
 
Upon hearing no additional public comments, the public hearing was closed. 

MOTION, passed 
Dr. Mahoney moved, and Mr. Olson seconded to accept the findings and 
recommendations of staff and recommend approval to the County Commission of the 
subdivision application as the proposal meets the goals and objectives of the Cass 
County Comprehensive Plan, the Cass County Highway Access Plan, the Flood Damage 
Prevention Ordinance, the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance and all other applicable 
regulations. 
On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS  
Mr. Soucy let the group know that Cass County has offered a position for County Planner to Cole Hansen. 
He would not be able to begin working until mid-August 2023. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
On motion by Mr. Gust seconded by Mr. Bertsch and all voting in favor, the meeting was adjourned at 
7:27 am. 

 
Minutes prepared by Lisa Shasky, Principal Secretary, Cass County Highway Department. 





Cass County Planning Commission 
June 22, 2023 

~ o■-i==--i==-■1•,000 "I' feet 

Imagery: spring 2021 
M1ps end dltl lte to be used for refe,ence 
ll"ll)OSeS on~ Ind C... COuntJ, ND, Is not 

responsi~ for any Inaccuracies herein 
conulAed. No responslbilily Is assumed to, 

dam-,es orotberll1bilitiesduetoehe 
ICQN'Ky, 1¥ail1bility, use o, misuse of the 

informationhefeinprCMded. 

CASS COUNTY 
GOVE RNM ENT ... 



Page 1 of 2 

Cass County Planning Commission Staff Report 
Entitlements 
Requested: 

Minor Subdivision (1 Lot) of a part of the W ½ of W ½ of NW ¼ of Section 
20, Township 139 North, Range 52 West

Title: Link Subdivision Date: 06/13/23 

Location: 

W ½ of W ½ of NW ¼ of 
Section 20, Township 139 
North, Range 52 West (Everest 
Township) 

Staff 
Contact: 

Jason Benson 

Parcel Number: 38-0000-04892-010
Water 

District: 
Maple River Water 
District 

Owner(s)/Applicant: Steven and Stacy Link 
Engineer/ 
Surveyor: 

engineer 

Status: Planning Commission Hearing: June 22, 2023 

Existing Land Use Proposed Land Use 

Residential Residential 

Proposal 

The applicant is seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled Link Subdivision to plat a one (1) Lot 
subdivision of approximately 40.19 acres.  According to the applicant, the subdivision is requested to build a new 
home on the established farmstead. 

The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The subdivision will 
use an existing 152nd Ave SE road access, ditches for storm sewer conveyance, rural water, and on-site septic 
systems for wastewater treatment.  

Agency Comments 

County Engineer 
No issues or concerns from the Highway Department or County Engineer 
standpoint. 

Water Resource District The Maple River Water Resource District has no comment to submit. 

Cass County Electric Cooperative No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Century Link No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Sprint/T-Mobile/Congent Sprint/T-Mobile/Cogent is clear and has no facilities near this location. 

AT&T No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Xcel Energy No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Agenda Item No. E.1 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Otter Tail Power Company No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Magellan Pipeline Company No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

NuStar Energy No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Cass Rural Water 
The Links have made an application for water service at this site and we are seeking 
easements for a water line route.  Otherwise, we have no additional comments at 
this time.  

North Dakota Department of 
Transportation 

No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

County Sanitarian Health has no issue with this proposal. 

Township Chairman No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

The City of Fargo No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

The City of West Fargo No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 

Public Comment No comments were received prior to publishing the staff report. 
. 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
Land Use and Surrounding Uses 
The subject property is bound by agricultural production land on all sides of the lot.  Township road 39th St SE 
borders the north of the property. 

 
Floodzone 
According to the FEMA Flood Map Service Center, this property is currently unmapped and not Special Hazard 
Flood Area has been identified.  In addition, no wetlands or other notable features are present on the proposed 
subdivision Lot.  
 
Land Development Rights 
The subject quarter-quarter section currently is developed and requires the transfer of a development right. 
Section 5.04 (e) of the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance states that every quarter-quarter section is 
granted one (1) Development Right to create a buildable lot with a minimum of 40 acres.  Because the lot 
subdivision proposal is less than 40 acres, a transfer of a development right is required along with a deed 
restriction. 

Staff Recommendation 
 
To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and recommend approval to the County Commission of the 
subdivision application as the proposal meets the goals and objectives of the Cass County Comprehensive Plan, 
the Cass County Highway Access Plan, the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, the Cass County Subdivision 
Ordinance and all other applicable regulations.  

 

Attachments 
 

1. Location Map 
2. Plat Document 

 



LOT 1
AREA = ±40.19 ACRES

33' RIGHT-O
F-W

AY

33' RIGHT-OF-WAY

33' RIGHT-OF-WAY

33' RIGHT-OF-WAY

N89°19'09"E - 662.79'

N
00

°1
3'

25
"W

 - 
26

42
.3

6'

S89°31'54"W - 661.75'

S0
0°

12
'0

5"
E 

- 2
64

4.
82

'

N00°13'25"W - 2642.36'

33.00'

33.00'
N89°19'09"E - 1988.36'

N89°31'54"E - 1985.24'

06
/0

7/
23

 0
1:

08
:2

3P
M

 Z
:\N

es
et

 S
ha

re
d 

Fi
le

s\
C

ol
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\_
20

22
_P

ro
je

ct
s\

22
02

2_
Pi

fe
r's

 L
an

d 
Au

ct
io

ns
\.0

6_
St

ev
e 

Li
nk

 N
W

1.
4-

20
-1

39
-5

2\
St

ev
e 

Li
nk

 2
0-

13
9-

52
 L

eg
al

.d
w

g

LEGEND

MONUMENT FOUND
MONUMENT SET

EX. EASEMENT
EX. PROPERTY LINE
EX. SECTION LINE
PROPERTY BOUNDARY LINE

SURVEY INFORMATION
DATE OF SURVEY: 10/24/2022

BASIS OF BEARING: ASSUMED NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER - N89°19'09"E

0 200 400

SHEET 1 OF 1

LINK SUBDIVISION
THE WEST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER,

SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 52 WEST
CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

POINT OF BEGINNING
POINT OF COMMENCEMENTP.O.C.

P.O.B.

FOR RECORDING PURPOSES ONLY

CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REVIEWED BY THE CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION THIS                                 DAY OF                                ,2023.

KEN LOUGHEED, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:
     SECRETARY  

EVEREST TOWNSHIP

REVIEWED BY EVEREST TOWNSHIP, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, THIS       DAY OF                   , 2023.

CARYN WEBER, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:      
     BRIAN OTTESON, CLERK

CASS COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONER'S APPROVAL
REVIEWED BY CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA THIS                    DAY OF                 , 2023.

CHAD PETERSON, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:
     BRANDY MADRIGGA, CASS COUNTY FINANCIAL DIRECTOR

CASS COUNTY ENGINEER

REVIEWED BY THE CASS COUNTY ENGINEER THIS              DAY OF                           , 2023.

JASON BENSON, CASS COUNTY ENGINEER

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT STEVEN AND STACY LINK ARE THE OWNERS OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1, LINK SUBDIVISION IN THE WEST
HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 52 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, EVEREST TOWNSHIP, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20; THENCE N00°13'25"W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20 A
DISTANCE OF 2642.36 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING A N00°13'25"W ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF
2642.36 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20; THENCE N89°19'09"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 20 A DISTANCE
OF 662.79 FEET; THENCE S00°12'05"E A DISTANCE OF 2644.82 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE
S89°31'54"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 661.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINS ±40.19 ACRES MORE OR LESS AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS OF WAY OF RECORD.

SAID OWNERS HAVE CAUSED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND SHOWN ON THIS PLAT TO BE SURVEYED AND PLATTED AS LINK A
MINOR SUBDIVISION TO THE COUNTY OF CASS, STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA.

BY: ________________________________________
      STEVEN S. LINK, OWNER

BY: ________________________________________
      STACY A. LINK, OWNER

STATE OF )
)SS

COUNTY OF )

BE IT KNOWN ON THIS   DAY OF     , 2023, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED STEVEN
S. LINK AND STACY A. LINK, KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND
ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION OF THE SAME AS A FREE ACT AND DEED.

MY COMMISSION

EXPIRES:

NOTARY PUBLIC

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

I, COLE A. NESET HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY, PLAN AND/OR REPORT WAS PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I
AM A DULY REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA.

COLE A. NESET DATE  
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR
LS-7513

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

STATE OF )
)SS

COUNTY OF )

BE IT KNOWN ON THIS   DAY OF     , 2023, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED COLE A.
NESET, NORTH DAKOTA REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE PERSON DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION OF THE SAME AS A FREE ACT AND DEED.

MY COMMISSION

EXPIRES:

NOTARY PUBLIC

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

T

19 20

30 29

13
9

52 139

52
139

52139

52

P.O.C./SW CORNER SECTION 20

P.O.B.

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

T

20 20

20 20

13
9

52 139

52
139

52139

52

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

T

17 17

20 20

13
9

52 139

52
139

52139

52

CENTER OF SECTION

NORTH QUARTER CORNER

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

T

18 17

19 20

13
9

52 139

52
139

52139

52

NORTHWEST CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
152ND AVE SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
39TH ST SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW 1/4 S20 - T139N - R52W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW 1/4 S20 - T139N - R52W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 1/2 W 1/2 NW 1/4 S20 - T139N - R52W

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N


	Thursday, June 22, 2023 at 7:00 a.m.
	Preliminary Plat_Link Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Steve Link 20-139-52 Legal-Plat_22x34_Map



